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A Tribute to the wonderful people who make up 
the volunteers to the Auxiliary to UHNBC 



“100 YEARS STRONG” 
When caring hearts meet willing hands….. Volunteers are created!!! 

100 Years and still going strong….. A tribute to the wonderful people who make up the volunteers to the 
Auxiliary to University Hospital of Northern B .C. 

 
Over the past 100 years our hospital has taken many forms and has grown as the years passed. The 
original hospital, a make shift log shack stayed in existence until the Grand Trunk Railway’s hospital was 
built in April 1914. Around the same time a new privately owned hospital was built. To help support this 
hospital, Mrs. Cowie, first President, formed the Ladies Auxiliary in August 1919. With much enthusiasm 
they set out to raise money for linens, to make sheets, drapes and other incidentals. 

 
A movement was started soon after the flu epidemic of 
1918 for a proper City hospital. Built in 1920, known as 
Pine Manor, the hospital was located at the NE Corner of 
13th Avenue and Alward Street. A great need of the  
time was an x ray machine and once again the Auxiliary 
set out and raised the $500.00 needed to purchase this 
machine. During the following years and during the 1930 
depression the Auxiliary worked even harder, going by 
horse and buggy collecting donations, storing produce 
and preserving food for the patients. 

 
Grand Trunk Railway Hospital 1914 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pine Manor 1920 
With the Expansion of the city after the Second World War the hospital was outgrown and with the 
availability of the now empty army barracks, plans were made to move. So in 1947 the hospital moved 
to Laurier and Lethbridge Street. Hospital insurance also arrived in the late 1940’s and the Auxiliary’s role 
changed. No longer were linens and produce needed; fund raising projects, such as teas, luncheons, 
dances, and many other creative ideas provided the ability to purchase equipment such as oxygen tents, 
bottle warmers, incubators and furnishings. 

 

Prince George Army Barracks Hospital 1947 
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In the late fifties it was very evident that a new and better hospital was needed. The Auxiliary President 
as part of the Hospital board played an important role in helping to organize a Regional District. With this 
in play plans slowly evolved and in May 1958 the sod was turned for the new Prince George Regional 
Hospital. 

 
 

Not only were there changes to our hospital, changes 
were happening within the Auxiliary. In 1959 
membership was growing and the first Thrift shop was 
opened. It was located at the former RCMP station on 

7th 

 
 
 

Avenue. Widely advertised, CKPG one of its biggest 
donors that year gave 1500 records and did free 
advertising on the radio. 

 
 

Prince George Regional Hospital 1960 
 
 

In 1960, with the opening of the new hospital, the still 
growing Auxiliary to Prince George Regional Hospital 
opened its first gift shop. In 1961 the first Bursary was 
given to a College student entering the medical field. 
This practice continues today with Scholarships and 
Bursarys going to students at both the College and 

University. In 1963 Compulsory Medical Insurance was introduced in British Columbia changing the 
direction of the Auxiliary from not only raising funds but to servicing different areas of the hospital. A 
Voluntary Services Committee was formed and by 1970 seventeen different services were organized. 
Many remain to this day. 

 
 
 

Starting in the 1950’s and continuing into the 1970’s the Auxiliary’s annual Ball was Prince George’s “Social 
event of the year”. One of the main fund raisers these Balls continued into the mid 70’s until rising costs 
forced the Auxiliary to abandon them and look for alternate ways to raise funds. 

 
Funding projects grew as the years passed-in 1979-- $65,000 to renovate pediatrics, 1980--$82,000 to 
build a solarium in Jubilee Lodge, 1984-- $200,000 to replace aging ICU equipment; 1998--$170,000 for 
4th floor renovations, 2013-- $200,000 for a SPECT CT Scan. 

 
In the early 1990’s more changes were happening. Since 1924 a representative from the Auxiliary sat on 
the hospital Board of Trustees. This changed in 1991 with the formation of the Northern Health Board 
and the Spirit of the North Healthcare Foundation. No longer were we part of the Health Board but were 
redirected to the Spirit where to this day a member holds a position on their board. Our relationship with 
Northern Health and the Spirit have continued to grow and we continue to be an integral part of the 
ongoing need of the hospital. 

Page 2. 



 
Unfortunately many of the early records of the Auxiliary were lost and some like volunteer hours were 
not recorded until the 1960’s and then only partially. However better volunteer hour records were started 
in the 1970’s and to date 1,062, 641 hours have been recorded.. Over the 100 years $5,642,783.72 has 
been raised for our hospital. 

 
The Auxiliary has grown as our hospital has grown, from small beginnings to the strong and vibrant 
Auxiliary we are today. As Auxiliary volunteers you can be proud of the many volunteers before you who 
built the foundation that is now “100 years strong!” 
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Auxiliary Day – May 2018 
 
 

 
Convenors – AGM 2018 


